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COUNTY OF ALAMEDA
HEALTH CARE SERVICES AGENCY (HCSA)

ADDENDUM No. 1
For
RFP No. HCSA-900518
Innovations In Reentry Pilot Projects

Specification Clarification/Modification and Recap of the Networking/Bidders Conferences
May 23 and 24, 2018
NOTICE TO BIDDERS
THIS COUNTY OF ALAMEDA, HCSA ADDENDUM HAS BEEN ELECTRONICALLY ISSUED TO POTENTIAL BIDDERS VIA E-MAIL BASED ON THE ATTACHED BIDDER SIGN-IN SHEETS.  THIS ADDENDUM WILL ALSO BE POSTED ON THE GENERAL SERVICES AGENCY (GSA) CONTRACTING OPPORTUNITIES WEBSITE LOCATED AT HTTP://WWW.ACGOV.ORG/GSA/PURCHASING/BID_CONTENT/CONTRACTOPPORTUNITIES.JSP

RFP Modifications
The following Sections have been modified to read as shown below. Changes made to the original RFP document are in bold print and highlighted, and deletions made have a strike through.

The RFP Section I.C. Scope/Specific Requirements, Target Population section, pp. 7-8, shall include the following new information and shall read as follows: 

Organizations that are not incorporated by the State, but which have a fiscal sponsor with legal and tax exempt status, may apply for up to $25,000 in funding with a Letter of Confirmation from the fiscal sponsor. The fiscal sponsor should be the Prime Bidder and the unincorporated organization should be a Subcontractor. Please see Exhibit A of this RFP for additional details.
	
The RFP Section 1.D., Bidder Qualifications, Item (a)., p. 12, shall include the following new information and shall read as follows: 

(a) Bidder shall be regularly and continuously engaged in the business of providing behavioral health, case management, educational, employment, or other social services to the Alameda County reentry population for a total of at least two (2) years. If the services were not continuous over a two (2)-year period, each set of services must have been provided continuously over a period of at least six months. For example, reentry services could have been provided from January 1, 2014 to June 30, 2014, and June 30, 2015 to December 31, 2016. 

The RFP Section I.E. Deliverables / Reports, Section 2. Specific Project Category Deliverables and Reporting, IIR Project Category 3. Culturally Responsive Services for Minority Subpopulations, page 15, shall include the following new information and shall read as follows: 

· Reporting Requirements
· Number of clients provided services
· Number of service encounters (based on type of service)
· Number of specific benefit of service (based on type of service)
· List of Alameda County agencies working in collaboration with service provider to provide service

The RFP Exhibit A, Bid Form(s), Page 5, shall include the following new information and shall read as follows:

The maximum amount that for each Proposal is:
· $100,000 for one (1) organization
•	$200,000 for two (2) or more organizations (Note: No single organization may receive more than $100,000 per project and per category)
•	$25,000 for a fiscally sponsored organization

The RFP Exhibit A, Required Documentation and Submittals, page 7 shall include the following new information and shall read as follows:

For collaborative projects, the Prime Bidder and the subcontractor(s) should be clearly identified. The fiscal sponsor should be the Prime Bidder and the unincorporated organization should be a Subcontractor. For fiscally sponsored organizations, the Fiscal Sponsor should submit a Letter of confirmation regarding the Fiscal Sponsorship relationship, including the terms of the relationship and any fees.  

Bid/Contract Questions
Q1: Do you have to be a non-profit to contract with the County? 
A1: No. Please refer to the RFP Exhibit A, Bidder Information and Acceptance, p. 4, where bidders can check their “Type of Entity / Organizational Structure.” 

Q2: Are non-profit 501 C(3) org exempt from SLEB? 
A2: Certain 501 C(3) organizations are exempt. Please refer to the link in the Exhibit A, Bidder Information and Acceptance, p. 2, item 5, Small Local Emerging Business Program [http://acgov.org/auditor/sleb/overview.htm], which includes the following information: 
 “The following entities are exempt from the Small and Emerging Local Business (SLEB) requirements as described above and are not required to subcontract with a SLEB:
· non-profit community based organizations (CBO) that are providing services on behalf of the County directly to County clients/residents;
· non-profit churches or non-profit religious organizations (NPO);
· public schools; and universities; and
· government agencies.”

Q3: 
a: Is the process or guidelines for ascertaining whether or not an organization is exempt from being required to have SLEB certification?
b: Do we need to apply for a waiver of the SLEB requirement? It wasn’t very clear in the meeting and we don’t want to start the application if we are unsure whether or not we will actually be exempt.

A3:
a: Please refer to question 2 of this Addendum. 
b: Please refer to question 2 of this Addendum. 

Q4: Do you have to have been awarded tax exempt status to be eligible or is it sufficient to be incorporated and have an EIN (tax exempt status pending)? 

A4: The County does not require Tax exempt status, but does require a Tax ID number. The prime bidder should have a Tax ID number. Please refer to the RFP Exhibit A, Bidder Information and Acceptance, p. 4, where the bidder’s “Federal Tax Identification Number” is requested. 

Q5: Do both the primary and the subcontract organization need to meet 1 of the 3 criteria (SLEB, SLEB-exempt, or subcontract 20% to SLEB)? 

A5: No. Please refer to the RFP Exhibit A, Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Partnering Information Sheet, p. 13, and to question 2 of this Addendum. 

Q6: Where on the SLEB form do you write “SLEB exempt”? There is no field for that. 

A6: On the RFP Exhibit A, Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Partnering Information Sheet, p. 13, please state anywhere on the form that your organization is exempt, with a brief explanation. Please refer to question 2 of this Addendum regarding SLEB exemptions. 

Q7:  What if you have not done business with County? What references can be used? 
A7:  Please refer to the RFP Exhibit A, Required Documentation and Submittals, (All Three Categories), item 3.c., References, p. 8, which states “[b]idders that have contracted with any agency of Alameda County within the last three (3) years must include these agency(ies) and contract manager(s) as a reference (up to five (5)).  Past contractual relationships with an Alameda County agency will not be considered an advantage in the Evaluation Criteria.”

If Bidders have not contracted with the County in the past, then they can use any reference. Bidders are required to list County references only if they have contracted with any County entity in the past five years. If a Bidder has contracted with five or more County entities, then all five references should be from the County; if a bidder has contracted with three County entities, then three references must come from those entities, and the other two references may be from any source. 

Q8: What is the ranking system for references? / Is there a significant difference depending on the type of references? 

A8: All reference sources are considered of equal value; there is no reference source that will be weighted more than any other. References will be evaluated based on whether they are verifiable sources and whether they support the information presented in the Relevant Experience Evaluation Criteria. Please refer to the RFP Exhibit A, Required Documentation and Submittals, (All Three Categories), item 3.c., References, p. 8for specific reference requirements. Preference will not be given to any particular type of reference.

Q9: When will the last Addendum be posted? 

A9: No future Addenda are planned at this time. However, this may change. Bidders should check the following GSA website for any additional postings prior to submission: https://acgov.org/gsa_app/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/contractingdetail.jsp?BID_ID=1971

Q10: Has the County considered making the RFP process easier for providers? (eg. Fewer pages and interviews) This is a small contract that requires a lot of time on our end. 

A10: The County is following prescribed rules and procedures from GSA in order to ensure fairness in the distribution of public funding.  

Q11: Will each of the 3 RFP evaluation committees be informed if each applicant has applied under more than one project category?

A11: No. Each category will be evaluated by separate evaluation panels without knowledge of the bids within other categories. 

Q12:
a: Can a primary applicant & subcontractor applicant apply for same projects category? 
b: If yes, are they restricted to 100k?
c: If you are a Fiscal Sponsor, will it count towards 100k limit?

A12:
a: No. An organization may only submit one application per project category, whether as a primary applicant or as a subcontractor. 
b: Please refer to 12a.
c: If an organization is serving only as a Fiscal Sponsor, only the portion of the IIR funding that it retains (for administering the funds) will count toward the $100,000 limit.

Q13: If an agency proposes for 3 categories, $100,000 maximum for each proposal, total: $300,000 in awards but RFP has $200,000 max. Please clarify. 

A13: Please refer to the RFP Exhibit A, Bid Form(s), p. 5. An organization may receive up to $300,000 if they submit successful proposals for the maximum amount in each Project Category because a Bidder may receive up to $100,000 for each Project Category. The $200,000 limit is the maximum amount a project may receive per Project Category if it is a collaboration between two or more organizations. 

Q14: Is the max award for 1 organization $100,000 per year or $100,000 for 18 months?
	
A14: The award amount is for the entire duration of the project, which is 18 months, with the exception of the Learning Conference. Please refer to the RFP Exhibit A, Bid Form(s), p. 5, which states “[t]he total proposed cost is the cost the County will pay for the 18-month term of any contract that is a result of this bid, contingent on funding availability.”

Q15: For collaborative projects, do you submit 1 bid packet / project category or 2 separate bid packets?

A15: For collaborative projects, please submit only one application per category. 

Q16: Regarding a collaboration with 2 organizations: Do the two orgs need to receive the same amount? Or can the indirect go to the prime bidder? 

A16: Collaborations may allocate the funding however the Bidders deem appropriate. However, per RFP Exhibit A, Bid Form(s), p. 5, no single organization may receive more than $100,000 per project and per category, including indirect costs. 

Q17: Are county agencies (eg. DPH, BHCS) eligible to apply or only CBOs? Could a county-operated project serve as a lead bidder? 

A17: Alameda County entities may not apply for this RFP.

Q18: Would it be possible to include the addendum changes to the RFP in a single document with the full RFP, rather than in a separate document? 

A18: This is not possible at this time. Please refer to Question 10 of this Addendum. At this time, there are no plans to make changes to the Addendum format. 

Q19: Does proposal need to be double-sided? 

A19: No. Please refer to RFP Section IV.Q., Submittal of Bids, Item 3., pp. 41-42, which states that “[i]t is preferred that all proposals submitted shall be printed double-sided” (emphasis added). However, this will not have an impact upon evaluation and scoring of the proposal. 

Q20: To prepare budget: How often can organization invoice and what backup information required? 

A20: Organizations may invoice on a monthly basis. Supporting documents include documents that indicate an expenditure, the payee, and a clear reason for the expenditure related to the project. 

Q21: If we’ll be attending the bidders conference on May 24th for RFP #HCSA-900518, do we need to RSVP? 
A21: No. 
Q22: The above referenced RFP, for Innovations in Reentry Pilot Projects, indicates that awardees will be required to collaborate “with a County-designated evaluator to measure project outcomes and results” (see C.2.g, page 9). Has the County of Alameda already obtained the services of the evaluator? Or will the a future procurement be issued to acquire the services of an evaluator? 
A22: Please refer to question 39 of this Addendum which states an evaluator has not been selected. Procurement of this evaluator is not within the scope of this RFP. 
Q23: I’m writing to confirm that organizations that were unable to attend the Bidders Conferences on the Re-entry Innovation Services RFP are still eligible to apply? 
A23: As the Bidders Conferences for this RFP were not mandatory, any organizations that were unable to attend may still apply.
Q24: Is Learning Conference a mandatory A/C County RFP requirement?  

A24: The Learning Conference is mandatory for this RFP because of the Innovations aspect of these projects. Please refer to RFP Section 1.E., Deliverables and Reports, Item 1.a, p. 13, which states “[p]resentation of Project Results at a County-coordinated IIR Learning Conference in Alameda County within one year of project completion” as a required deliverable. It is not a general requirement for other Alameda County RFPs. 


Scope of Work Questions

Q25: What is culturally informed practices? 
A25: Please refer to the National Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS) standards included in Supplement 1, which is posted on the RFP website here: https://acgov.org/gsa_app/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/contractingdetail.jsp?BID_ID=1971

Q26: When does the public domain start? 

A26: The materials created by the Selected Awarded Bidder become public domain at the completion of the project.

Q27: If the County decides to use materials created by one of the grantees (such as a curriculum), does the program that created the materials have any guarantee that the County will consult with them? 

A27: No.
Q28: Under the Deliverable/Reports (page 14) section under Data/Outcomes – Does the technical training support come with a price, or is it free? 

A28: If the County determines that technical support or training is necessary for the Selected Awarded Bidder, the County will provide in-kind support. 

Q29: Do you provide a tracking tool or do we create it ourselves? 

A29: The County will provide a tracking tool for Categories 1 and 2. The County will not provide a tracking tool for Category 3. The provision of a tracking tool does not preclude a Selected Awarded Bidder from using its own data collection system. 

Q30:
a: Does all portions of the grant need to partnered with Alameda County agencies/programs? 
b: Can you collaborate with organizations outside of Alameda County? 

A30:
a: Bidders may propose collaborations with entities outside of Alameda County as appropriate for their project. However, the project can only serve residents of Alameda County. 
b: Yes. However, projects may only serve residents of Alameda County.

Q31: 
a: It was stated that bidders should include in their bid(s) funding for a learning conference after the 18 month grant period. Are there other items to fund after the grant period? 
b: Is there a limit or suggested amount to budget for after the grant period?

A31:
a: Aside from the Learning Conference, all components of the project should be completed within the 18 month period. 

The Learning Conference will be a full or half day event open to the community to showcase the learnings and outcomes of the IIR Round 3 projects. The Selected Awarded Bidder will be expected to participate in the Learning Conference in order to present information regarding its project, which may include: 
· Making project staff and clients available to present on a panel or at a table 
· Creating an hour long presentation or workshop about the project and its outcomes
· Present the project in 1-2 minute video clips about the project to be shown at the Conference (to be recorded and edited by County-provided consultants)
· Providing written summaries of the project and outcomes for Conference materials 
· Helping to promote the Conference to clients, partners, and community members
b: No. Please refer to Question 31a of this Addendum. 

Q32: Is there a percentage limit to set aside for learning conference? 

A32: No. Please refer to Answer 31a of this Addendum for what the Learning Conference entails. 

Q33: 
a: What does the County do to help ensure continuation funding for successful innovations? 
b: Should the bids identify potential continuation funding for after the grant period?
c: Is there information on continuation funding for immigration projects funded in rounds 1 and 2?

A33:
a: This question is outside the scope of this RFP. This RFP provides funding for only an 18 month pilot project. 
b: Bidders may identify potential continuation funding in their proposals if they consider that information responsive to the Evaluation Criteria. 
c: This question is outside the scope of this RFP. For more information on Rounds 1 and 2, please see the IIR website, http://www.innovationsinreentry.org/

Q34: If a bidder wants to address 2 or more distinct subpopulations in Category 3, should separate bids be submitted, or one bid that describe different projects for the separate subpopulations? 

A34: Please refer to the RFP Exhibit A, Required Documentation and Submittals, p. 7, which states: “Under this RFP, bidders are permitted to submit proposals for one (1) or more of the three (3) categories. Bidders may either bid on one or more than one target population within each category.  Bidders choosing bid on multiple categories must submit a separate bid response for each category. Failure to submit a separate, complete bid response for each category proposed may be grounds for bid disqualification. Bidders may not submit more than one (1) bid per category.” For Category 3, a bidder may list two distinct subpopulations if the proposed project can address the need of both subpopulations through the services provided. 

Q35: What is the website for the Innovations in Reentry Program? 

A35: The website for the Innovations in Reentry Program is http://www.innovationsinreentry.org/

Q36: Can we be provided a list of previous innovation projects from Rounds 1 and 2? 

A36: This information is available at http://www.innovationsinreentry.org/

Q37: Is there a stipend amount allocated for the organization’s participation in County-coordinated evaluation or does this need to included in 100K project budget? 

A37: Any costs associated with participating in the evaluation should be included in the proposed budget. Aside from the outcomes reporting already required for the project, participation includes making staff available for interviews and making clients available for focus groups. 

Q38: Can we be made aware of County Designated Evaluators? 

A38: The County has not yet selected an evaluator; their information will be made available once they are selected. 

Q39: Will nonprofit be reimbursed for Learning Conferences? 

A39: The Bidder will be reimbursed for Learning Conference expenses only if they are included in the project budget. 

Q40: Does “Learning Component” refer to research of innovation and/or partnering with a researcher or primary investigator? 

A40: No. “Learning Component” means that there is a “Learning Question,” or some aspect of the project that is conducted for learning purposes regarding what strategies are effective in addressing a specific issue. 

Q41: Can organizations participate in the Learning Cafes and/or Learning Conferences if they are not a current grantee? 

A41: Only Selected Awarded Bidders can participate in the Learning Cafes.  Anyone is welcome to attend the Learning Conference, which will be free and open to the public. 

Q42: Are skills based trainings acceptable as a project? 

A42: Skills based training may be incorporated into a project if it meets the specific requirements of the Project Category. 

Q43: Can the project only serve a subset of the adult reentry population? E.g. ages 18-24 only? 

A43: For Project Category 3, the proposal should serve a subset by definition. For Project Categories 1 and 2, Bidders may propose to serve a subset of the adult reentry population, and this may be considered a factor in Evaluation. 

Q44: Are homeless people (homelessness) a “minority subpopulation”? 

A44: Yes, for Project Category 3, “homeless” individuals may be considered a “minority subpopulation.” 

Q45: Is an organization that has provided reentry services to the juvenile population (ages 15-18) for 2 years eligible for this RFP? 

A45: Yes. Please refer to RFP Section 1.D., Bidder Qualifications, Item a., p. 12, which states “[b]idder shall be regularly and continuously engaged in the business of providing behavioral health, case management, educational, employment, or other social services to the Alameda County reentry population for at least two (2) years.” Please also refer to the RFP Modifications section of this Addendum which edits the language above.

Q46: Could you elaborate on the “continuously engaged” bidder qualification in I.D.(a)? 

A46: Please review the RFP Modifications section of this Addendum, which edits Bidder Qualifications Item I.D.(a) and clarifies what “continuously engaged” refers to.

Q47: If an organization bids for project category one requesting $100,000, can that same organization bid for project category two requesting $80,000?

A47: Yes, a single organization may submit a bid for up to $100,000 per Project Category. 

Q48: Reentry Support: Does that mean that a client’s parol officer have to be involved?

A48: We encourage collaboration in Alameda County, including with community corrections agencies such as Parole if appropriate. However, a client’s specific parole officer does not need to be involved in the project if it is not appropriate to the project. 

Q49: In the key personnel section, what do you mean by “person’s language capacity”? 

A49: Please list the key personnel’s ability to speak, write, or listen in languages other than English. 

Q50: Does the Alameda County Agencies to used as references include other non-profit organization that have a good standing with Alameda County? 

A50: Please refer to question 7 of this Addendum. 

Q51: For key personnel in Exhibit A, can we use a place holder if we do not currently have an individual in reentry on staff? 

A51: Yes. Please state the role, qualifications for that position, and how the Bidder proposes to fill this position. 

Q52: 
a: Individuals who have been in the criminal justice system need to present their criminal background for key personnel experience? 
b: What is meant by “lived experience”? 

A52:
a: For Category 2, it is required that a staff member must have had lived experience with the criminal justice system or a family member who has had lived experience with the criminal justice system. To meet this qualification, the key personnel section should state that a staff member has had this experience; however, if the Bidder wishes to preserve the anonymity of the staff member, then it may use a pseudonym for the staff member. 
b: “Lived experience” is a term that indicates that someone has personal experience with a situation, such as a mental health condition or criminal justice involvement.  It does not refer to where someone lives. 

Q53: Is the template for the sample work plan only? 

A53: The template for the Work Plan in Supplement 2 is the format only for the Work Plan. 

Q54: Where does one find information on continuation funding for successful projects? 

A54: Per the local Mental Health Services Act plan and the State of California Mental Health Services Act regulations, the innovative pilot projects funded by this program can be only 18 months in duration.  There is no direct continuation funding for these projects provided through this funding source.   

Q55: What if the organization has provided adult reentry services in other counties besides Alameda? 

A55: RFP Section 1.D., Bidder Qualifications, a., p. 12, has been revised to delete “Alameda County” in the RFP Modifications section of this Addendum.  An organization may meet Minimum Qualifications if it has provided services to the reentry population both within and outside of Alameda County. 
  
Q56:  What does “Number of specific benefit of service (based on type of service)” mean for Category 3 Reporting requirements?” 

A56: Based on the type of service provided, the Bidder will identify specific benefits for clients as a result of the service that it will track as part of the program outcomes. For example, for case management services, a Bidder could track “number of individuals connected to employment opportunity.” 

Q57: We have existing reentry planning resources like guides and toolkits that we produce and publish ourselves. I understand that if we create any new resources as part of the project, they would become public domain after the project, but if we happen to use any of our existing resources for at least part of the project, would these too have to become public domain? 

A57: This depends on how the existing resources are integrated into the project.  If part of an existing curriculum or guide is directly incorporated as part of the IIR project curriculum or toolkit, then this would become public domain. (For example, if a bidder has an existing training curriculum on mental health peer services and copies a module on “trauma and triggers” from that curriculum directly into the new IIR curriculum the bidder develops, then that module would become part of the IIR toolkit and be considered public domain.) However, if the IIR project lists or references the existing training as a helpful resource but does not include any additional information, then the existing materials would not become public domain.  
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Bidders Conference Attendees
The following participants attended the Bidders Conferences:


	
	Company Name / Address
	Representative
	Contact Information

	1. 
	Bonita House, Inc.
6333 Telegraph Avenue
Oakland, CA 94609
	Terrence Cole
	Phone: 510-735-0864

	
	
	
	E-Mail: terrence@bonitahouse.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	2. 
	Tayba Foundation Life Skills: Reentry
31030 Union City, CA 94587
	Eugene Priester, III
	Phone: 510-870-2017

	
	
	
	E-Mail: reentry@taybafoundation.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	3. 
	E.C Reems Community Service
Oakland, CA
	Tamikia McCoy
	Phone: 510-633-5133

	
	
	
	E-Mail: 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	4. 
	Arsula Adult Residential Facility
361 105th Avenue
Oakland, CA
	Tamikia McCoy
	Phone: Candi Thorton
510-878-2929
510-830-7851

	
	
	
	E-Mail: 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	5. 
	Chinese for Affirmative Action
416 8th Street
Oakland, CA 94607
	Ben Wang
	Phone: 510-292-0852

	
	
	
	E-Mail: ben@asianprisonersupport.org 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	6. 
	Root & Rebound
1730 Franklin Avenue, Suite 300
Oakland, CA
	Thomas Alexander
	Phone: 510-279-4662

	
	
	
	E-Mail: egilbert@rootandrebound.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      





	7. 
	Options Recovery
	Porter Sexton
	Phone:      

	
	
	
	E-Mail: psexton@optionsrecovery.org 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	8. 
	Rise
475 14th Street
Oakland, CA
	Dr. Odell Johsa
	Phone: 650-995-6589

	
	
	
	E-Mail: odell@risejustice.com 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: 

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	9. 
	ACNMHC – BestNow!
8105 Edgewater Drive, Suite 100
Oakland, CA 94621
	Jamie Works-Wright
	Phone: 510-969-5073

	
	
	
	E-Mail: jworks-wright@acnetmhc.org 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes 

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	10. 
	ACNMHC – 
3238 Adeline Street
Berkeley, CA 94703

	Katrina Killian
	Phone: 510-652-7451

	
	
	
	E-Mail: kkillian@acnetmhc.org 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	11. 
	ACNMHC – 
3238 Adeline Street
Berkeley, CA 94703

	Shawna Sanchagrin
	Phone: 510-652-7451

	
	
	
	E-Mail: ssanchagrin@acnetmhc.org   

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	12. 
	Building Opportunities for Self-Sufficiency (BOSS)
1918 University Avenue, #2A
Berkeley, CA 94704
	Sonja Fitz
	Phone: 510-649-1930

	
	
	
	E-Mail: sfitz@self-suffiency.org 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes





	13. 
	BALLERS
Brothers and Ladies Leading for Enrighment, Righteusness, and Success
	Natisha Gatlin
	Phone: 510-712-1058

	
	
	
	E-Mail: Ballersemail@gmail.com 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: 

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	14. 
	BALLERS
Brothers and Ladies Leading for Enrighment, Righteusness, and Success
	Lamar Mosley
	Phone: 510-706-6863

	
	
	
	E-Mail: Lemosley76@gmail.com 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	15. 
	BALLERS
Brothers and Ladies Leading for Enrighment, Righteusness, and Success
	Natisha Gatlin
	Phone: 510-990-6030

	
	
	
	E-Mail: Ballersemail@gmail.com 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	16. 
	Peters Family Enterprise
	Sean Peters
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	17. 
	CLA
California Lawyers for the Arts
	Ariel Heinicke
	Phone: 510-990-6030

	
	
	
	E-Mail: ariel.heinicke@calawyersforthearts.org 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	18. 
	CLA
California Lawyers for the Arts
	Mattie Robertson
	Phone: 510-990-6030

	
	
	
	E-Mail: mattie.robertson@calawyersforthearts.org 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      





	19. 
	Whitted Dawson Group
2224 Lindin Street
Oakland, CA 94607
	Elizabeth Whitted-Dawson
	Phone: 510-759-9247

	
	
	
	E-Mail: eliz@whitteddawsongroup.com 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	20. 
	Roots Community Health Center
	Jessica Trasenia
	Phone: 510-424-1907

	
	
	
	E-Mail: jessica@rootsclinis.org 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	21. 
	Roots Community Health Center
	Noha Abuelata
	Phone: 510-777-1177

	
	
	
	E-Mail: drnoha@rootsclinic.org 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	22. 
	Insight Garden Program
	Karen Hsueh
	Phone: 908-342-4498

	
	
	
	E-Mail: karen@insightgardenprogram.org 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	23. 
	Serenity House
	Dawn Valadez
	Phone: 510-326-0309

	
	
	
	E-Mail: dawnvaladez@gmail.com 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	24. 
	Tri Cities Community Development
	Ed Wright
	Phone: 510-386-5938

	
	
	
	E-Mail: ewright09@yahoo.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes





	25. 
	Tri Cities Community Development Center
37620 Filbert Street
Newark, CA
	Paston Horacio Jones
	Phone: 925-812-08

	
	
	
	E-Mail: pastonjones@tricitiescdc.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	26. 
	Derrell Ford
3322 A King Street
Berkeley, CA 94703
	Darrel Ford
	Phone: 510-325-4888

	
	
	
	E-Mail: putinalotomlt@gmail.com 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: 

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	27. 
	Kaire Poole
Divine Psychological Services
22568 Mission Blvd 422
Hayward, CA 94541
	Kaire Poole
	Phone: 415-305-6809

	
	
	
	E-Mail: divinepsychologicalsvcs@gmail.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Kaire Poole

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Pending

	28. 
	Allen Temple health & Social Services
	Gloria Crowell
	Phone: 510-544-8947

	
	
	
	E-Mail: gcrowell@allen-temple.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: ATHSSM

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	29. 
	Ronald Pineda 
Vertical Pcane
	Ronald Pineda
	Phone: 510-865-1053

	
	
	
	E-Mail: ronaldepineda@gmail.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	30. 
	Patrick Leonard
La Familia
	Patrick Leonard
	Phone: 734-904-2848

	
	
	
	E-Mail: pleonard@lafamiliacounseling.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes





	31. 
	Katie Sandoval-Clark
Fresh Lifelines for Youth
	Katie Sandoval-Clark
	Phone: 408-386-7387

	
	
	
	E-Mail: katie@flyprogram.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	32. 
	East Bay Family Defenders
Eliza Patten
	Eliza Patten
	Phone:      

	
	
	
	E-Mail: eliza@familydefender.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: 

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	33. 
	
	
	Phone:      

	
	
	
	E-Mail: 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	34. 
	
	
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	35. 
	
	
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	36. 
	
	
	Phone:      

	
	
	
	E-Mail: 

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      




